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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT | FILED RITEY
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA o
WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION i;j?* MAR 1 2 2025

-.f:
ENGAJER INC, - Cﬁiﬁiﬁ%’mﬁ
Plaintiff,
V.

MICROSOFT CORPORATION, OPENA| L.P, SOUL MACHINES, INC., META PLATFORNS,
INC., and DOES 1-10,
Defendants.

Case No.: [To be assigned]

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Engajer Inc. ("Plaintiff'), by and through its authorized representatives, brings this
Complaint against Microsoft Corporation, OpenAl, L.P., Soul Machines, Inc., Meta
Platforms, Inc., and Does 1-10 (collectively, "Defendants") for patent infringement of U.S.
Patent No. 10,956,965 B2 and alleges as follows:

PARTIES
1. Plaintiff

o Plaintiff Engajer Inc. is a C Corporation incorporated under the laws of the
State of Delaware, with its principal place of business at 3300 S Dixie Hwy,
West Palm Beach, FL 33405. ' '

o Engajer Inc. is the lawful owner of U.S. Patent No. 10,956,965 B2, titled
"Interactive System for Generating and Presentmg Personalized Video
Content", duly issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office
("USPTQO") on March 23, 2021 (the “Engajer Patent”).

o Plaintiff develops and provides innovative Al-driven interactive video
engagement solutions that leverage the patented technology.
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2. Defendants

" o Microsoft:Corporation is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Washington, with its principal place of business at One Microsoft
Way, Redmond, WA 98052.

o OpenAl L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership, with its principal place of
business at 3180 18th Street, San Francisco, CA 94110.

o ‘Soul Machines, Inc. is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of
business at 575 Market St, San Francisco, CA 94105.

o Meta Platforms, Inc. is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of
business at 1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025.

o DOES 1-10 are unidentified entities or individuals who, upon information and
belief, have engaged in infringing activities and will be named as their identities
become known.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
3. This action arises under the Patent Laws of the United States, 35 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.
4. This Court has subject ma&erjurisdictibn under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal question
jurisdiction) and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a) (exclusive jurisdiction over patent infringement
claims).
5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because:
Each Defendant transacts business within Florida,
Each Defendant sells, offers for sale, and distributes infringing products
within this judicial district, and
o Each Defendant has committed acts of infringement within this district in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. o
6. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b) because each Defendant:
o Has a regular and established place of business within this District, and/or
o Has committed acts of infringement within this District.
FACTUAL BACKGROUND
7. Plaintiffs Patent

~5
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o Plaintiff owns all rights, title, and interest in U.S. Patent No. 10,956,965 B2 (the
"Engajer Patent"), titled "Interactive System for Generating and Presenting
Personalized Video Content.”

o A true and correct copy of the Engajer Patent is attached as Exhibit A.

8. Defendants’ Infringing Activities

o Defendants manufacture, use, sell, offer for sale, or distribute products and
services that infringe one or more claims of the Engajer Patent without
authorization.

o Upon information and belief, Defendants’ Al-powered interactive content
systems, video-based engagement platforms, and Al chatbot interfaces
infringe on Plaintiff's patented technology.

o Defendants have willfully engaged in such infringing activities despite knowledge
of the Engajer Patent.

COUNT I — PATENT INFRINGEMENT (35 U.S.C. § 271) -

9. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1-8 as though fully set forth herein.

10. Defendants have infringed and continue to infringe one or more claims of the Engajer
Patent by making, using, offering for sale, selling, and/or distributing infringing
products and services in the United States without Plaintiff’'s authorization, in violation
of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

11. Defendants’ infringement is willful, entitling Plaintiff to enhanced damages under 35
US.C. § 284.

12. Plaintiff has suffered substantial damages as a direct result of Defendants’ infringing
activities.

13. Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer irreparable harm unless Defendants are
permanently enjoined from further infringement.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment in its favor and grant
the following relief:
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A. A declaration that Defendants have infringed U.S. Patent No. 10,956,965 B2;
B. A permanent injunction preventing Defendants from further infringement;
C. An award of damages, including:

e Lost profits and/or a reasonable royalty under 35 U.S.C. § 284,
e Treble damages due to Defendants’ willful infringement,

D. An award of attorney’s fees and costs under 35 U.S.C. § 285 (if applicable despite pro se
representation);

E. Any other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff demands a trial by
jury on all issues so triable.

Dated: 02/13/2025
Respectfully submitted,

ENGAJER INC

3300 S Dixie Hwy

West Palm Beach, FL 33405
Email: michael@engajer.com
Phone: (408) 916 - 7201

By: MICHAEL CASTELLANO
Authorized Representative of Engajer Inc.
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PROVIDING WEBPAGES USED TO
CONFIGURE INTERACTIVE MARKETING
PRESENTATIONS OVER A NETWORK

CROSS REFERENCE TO RELATED
APPLICATIONS

This application is a continuation of, and claims priority
under 35 US.C. § 120 from, nonprovisional U.S. patent
application Ser. No. 14/164,085 entitled “Providing
Webpages Used To Configure Interactive Marketing Presen-
tations Over A Network,” filed Jan. 24, 2014. application
Ser. No. 14/164,085 in tum claims the benefit under 35
US.C. § 119 of U.S. Provisional Application Ser. No.
61/757,060, entitled “Providing Webpages Used To Config-
ure Interactive Marketing Presentations Over A Network,”
filed Jan. 25, 2013. The entire subject matter of the afore-
mentioned patent documents is incorporated herein by ref-
erence.

TECHNICAL FIELD

The described embodiments relate to online advertising,
and more particularly to providing interactive marketing
presentations.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Client Relationship Management (CRM) systems provide
a tool for sales associates of an organization to manage
relations with clients. CRM systems are typically accessible
through a web browser via a network, and allow a group of
sales associates to store contact information of clients, keep
track of interactions with clients, and manage marketing
campaigns. Unfortunately, CRM systems do not have effec-
tive functionality for closely tracking each interaction of
every sales associate. Determining successful marketing
techniques that other sales associates can emulate is costly.
In some cases, it may not be possible to determine the most
effective marketing technique because a top sales associate
may decide to keep their marketing techniques confidential
in order to maintain their competitive edge within the
organization. Third, an organization is usually unaware of
how a potential client responds to the marketing pitch by a
sales associate because the interaction between the sales
associate and the contact typically ends when the commu-
nication ends. Thus the organization is generally forced to
surmise the success of a marketing campaign from the
overall number of closed deals. A more effective solution is
desired.

SUMMARY

A software application running on a web server provides
a webpage to an Internet browser of a selling entity. The
selling entity is typically engaged in selling a product or
service. The webpage includes an amount of instructions
that render User Interface (UI) components on the browser
of the selling entity. The selling entity uses the Ul compo-
nents to configure a marketing presentation. The marketing
presentation is referred to as an “Interactive Marketing
Presentation (IMP)” because the IMP receives user input
that determines how the presentation is presented to the
purchasing entity. For example, the purchasing entity deter-
mines the order that the segments of the marketing presen-
tation are to be presented to the purchasing entity by clicking
buttons on the IMP.
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The selling entity configures the IMP using the UI com-
ponents by generating segments to be part of the presenta-
tion. The selling entity configures each segment of the IMP
to include rich-media coutent such as text, video, audio, and
images. In one example, the selling entity creates an intro-
ductory segment and four response segments. The introduc-
tion segment is configured to include a video presentation
and four buttons. The selling entity utilizes Ul components
to form links between the introductory segment and the
response segments. The selling entity adds appropriate text,
audio and video content to each of the four response
segments.

In one embodiment, a selling entity accesses a login
webpage via a network using an Internet browser executing
on a user system. The user system is selected from the group
consisting of a desktop computer, a portable laptop, or a
mobile handset. The login page comprises a username input
text field UI component, a password input text field Ul
component, and a submit button UI component. The selling
entity enters username information and password informa-
tion into their respective input text fields and clicks the login
button. If the username information and password informa-
tion is correct, then the selling entity is redirected to another
webpage that includes a plurality of Ul components used to
configure the IMP. In another example, instead of the selling
entity being redirected to another webpage, the selling entity
is presented with the plurality of Ul components used to
configure the IMP on the same webpage without the selling
entity being redirected to another webpage.

Next, the selling entity uses the plurality of Ul compo-
nents provided on the webpage to configure the IMP. A
portion of the Ul components present on the webpage are
used to generate a visual representation of the IMP. The
selling entity uses the UI components to generate segments
of the presentation, also referred to as “nodes”. The selling
entity can add text, video, drawings, and navigation buttons
to each segment, by clicking particular UI components or by
dragging particular UI components. For example, the selling
entity configures an IMP that includes an introduction seg-
ment that is used to introduce a product. The selling entity
uses the Ul components to label the introduction segment
and to add video, text, pictures, and sound. The selling entity
uses the Ul components to add four clickable navigation
buttons on the introduction segment, each clickable button
corresponding to another segment of the IMP. When the IMP
is rendered on an Internet browser, each of the navigation
buttons will be rendered on the introduction segment and
when clicked, will render a corresponding segment of the
IMP. In this example, the IMP configured by the selling
entity is represented as a tree having a root node and four
child nodes.

Next, configuration information of the IMP created by the
selling entity is communicated from the webpage to the
software application running on the web server via the
network. The configuration information comprises data for
rendering the IMP on an Internet browser of a purchasing
entity or other potential business customer. The configura-
tion information includes all the content for each of the
segments (text, URLs for videos, URLs for images, URLs
for audio recordings) and also includes link information
indicative of how the segments of IMP are associated with
each other. The software application stores the configuration
information in a database.

A purchasing entity may then view the interactive mar-
keting presentation by visiting a web address provided by
the selling entity. In response to receiving a particular HTTP
request onto the web server, the sofiware application
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retrieves the configuration information from the database.
The software application uses the retrieved configuration
information to generate a set of instructions that render the
IMP. The software application supplies set of instructions
that render the IMP onto the browser of the purchasing
entity. The purchasing entity views and interacts with the
IMP. In addition to providing the IMP to the purchasing
entity, the software application stores interaction informa-
tion generated from the purchasing entity interacting with
the IMP. Interaction information includes values indicative
of lengths of time the purchasing entity spends viewing each
segment of the IMP. Interaction information also includes
information indicative of which buttons and other Ul ele-
ments were clicked on each of the segments. The interaction
information generated as a result of the interaction is stored
in the database and is provided to the selling entity.
Further details and embodiments and techniques are
described in the detailed description below. This summary

does not purport to define the invention. The invention is 2

defined by the claims.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

The accompanying drawings, where like numerals indi-
cate like components, illustrate embodiments of the inven-
tion.

FIG. 1 is a diagram of a selling entity 101 logging into an
application server 100 to generate an Interactive Marketing
Presentation (IMP) to market a product to prospective
clients.

FIG. 2 is a diagram of the software application 102
providing to the selling entity a webpage 110 used to
configure the IMP.

FIG. 3 is a diagram of the selling entity 101 using the Ul
components 112 to configure the IMP 113.

FIG. 4 is a diagram showing how selling entity 101 uses
the UI components 112 to configure the IMP 113 such that
video is associated with each of the segments of the IMP
113.

FIG. 5 is a diagram showing the webpage 110 transmitting
configuration information 152 to the software application
102 rnning on application server 100.

FIG. 6 is a diagram showing how the software application
102 retrieves the configuration information 152 and trans-
mifs the configuration information 152 to an Internet
browser 155 of a purchasing entity 156.

FIG. 7 is a flowchart of a method 200 in accordance with
one novel aspect.

Reference will now be made in detail to some embodi-
ments of the invention, examples of which are illustrated in
the accompanying drawings.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION

FIG. 1 is a diagram of a selling entity 101 logging into an
application server 100 to generate an Interactive Marketing
Presentation (IMP) to market a product to prospective
clients. In this example, selling entity 101 is a sales associate
employed by a company that provides the product being
marketed. A set of processor-executable instructions 102 are
stored on application server 100. The set of processor-
executable instructions is a software application. The appli-
cation server 100 receives HyperText Transfer Protocol
(HTTP) requests and responds to the request by supplying
HyperText Markup Language (HTML) instructions execut-
able on an Internet browser.
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Selling entity 101 supplies a Universal Resource Locator
(URL) address of the application server 100 to Internet
browser 104 of user system 105. Internet browser 104
generates and transmits an HTTP request to application
server 100. HTTP request is handled by the software appli-
cation 102, and the software application 102 responds by
transmitting an HTTP response comprising instructions for
rendering an HTML login page 1066 via communication
module 107 over network 108. Login page 106 queries the
selling entity 101 for login credentials. Selling entity 101
provides the login credentials, and the login credentials 109
are communicated back to application server 100 for authen-
tication. After authenticating, selling entity 101 obtains
access to the software application 102.

FIG. 2 is a diagram of a webpage 110 rendered on Internet
browser 104 that is used to configure the IMP. Software
application 102 generates and supplies webpage 110 to
Internet browser 104 via communication module 107 and
network 108. Webpage 110 includes an amount of instruc-
tions 111. The amount of instructions 111 cause browser 104
to render a plurality of User Interface (UI) components 112.
The selling entity 101 uses the UI components to configure
the IMP. In this example, the amount of instructions 111
inchudes HyperText Markup Language (HTML) instructions
that include various HTML elements, such as a span ele-
ment, an image element, a table element, an animation
element, an external video object element, a poll element, a
selection box element, a radio box element, a form element,
a text box element, a real-time messaging box element, and
a button element.

FIG. 3 is a diagram of the selling entity 101 using the Ul
components 112 to configure the IMP. Reference numeral
113 identifies a plurality of UI components that represent the
IMP. Blocks 120-124 represent segments of the IMP that are
configured by the selling entity 101. Each of blocks 126-124
is also referred to as a “segment” or a “node”. Text associ-
ated with the IMP that is to be configured is set using text
box Ul component 117. The text that is supplied to text box
117 serves as a label or title for the IMP. In this example,
selling entity 101 supplies text “engajer about engajer” into
the text box 117.

Although FIG. 3 illustrates segments 120-124, initially,
the selling entity 101 is presented with a webpage without
any segments. The set of UI components 113 that is shown
in FIG. 3 is merely a visual representation of the IMP that
is used by the selling entity 101 as a visual tool to design the
presentation. In implementation, IMP is a set of instructions
that is used to render the 113 on the Internet browser. The
IMP as it will appear on the Internet browser of a purchasing
entity may be previewed by the selling entity by clicking Ul
button element 118. Below is a description of how the
selling entity 101 generates the IMP via the Ul components
provided on webpage 110.

Initially, selling entity 101 begins by generating a first
segment 120 and entering text to be associated with the
segment 120 (“engajer”). Ul component 125 is an HTML
text field. Selling entity 101 enters text into text field 125, for
example, “What would you like to know next?”. The first
segment 120 of the IMP will display this text when the IMP
is rendered. The number of segments to be associated with
segment 120 is set using drop-down list Ul component 119.
For example, the selling entity 101 sets drop-down list to “4”
indicating that the viewer of the IMP 113 will be able to
select from one of four buttons to view additional segments
of the presentation.

Next, selling entity uses the plurality of UI components
112 (see FIG. 2) to configure the IMP to include segments
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121-124. Each of segments 121-124 are configured similarly
to segment 120 using the Ul components 112 to include
rich-media content, such as audio, video, text and images.
Although FIG. 3 does not show the creation of each seg-
ment, below is an explanation of how the user would have
used the Ul components on webpage 110 to generate and
configure the plurality of segments 113. In this example, the
selling entity 101 clicks on the segment 121 and enters text
(“Sales”) into the text box 125 to set the text of the segment
121. Selling entity 101 clicks on the segment 122 and enters
text (“Contact”) into the text box 125 to set the text of the
segment 122. Selling entity 101 clicks on the segment 123
and enters text (“Competitors™) into the text box 125 to set
the text of the segment 123. Selling entity 101 clicks on the
segment 124 and enters text (“Sales Director”) into the text
box 125 to set the text of the segment 124.

Next, selling entity uses the Ul components 112 to form
links between segment 120 and segments 121-124. Selling
entity 101 clicks on segment 120, and enters text into text
box 126 (“How do you sell using engajer?”). This text will
be associated with a clickable button (see button 158 in FIG.
6) when segment 120 is rendered in the Internet browser.
Selling entity 101 forms the link by selecting the segment
121 (“2. Sales”) from the drop-down list Ul element 127.
This link is shown on the webpage as link 127 connecting
segment 120 and segment 121.

Selling entity sets the associated text and link for each of
the other three segments 122-124 in a similar fashion.
Selling entity 101 enters text into text box 128 (“How do T
get in contact with engajer?”). This text will be associated
with a clickable button (see button 159 in FIG. 6) when
segment 120 is rendered in the Internet browser. Selling
entity 101 forms the link by selecting the segment 122 (“3.
Contact”™) from the drop-down list Ul element 129. This link
is shown on the webpage as link 130 connecting segment
120 and segment 122.

Selling entity 101 enters text into text box 131 (“How is
engajer different than the competition?”). This text will be
associated with a clickable button (see button 160 in FIG. 6)
when segment 120 is rendered in the Internet browser.
Selling entity 101 forms the link by selecting the segment
123 (4. Competitors™) from the drop-down list UI element
132. This link is shown on the webpage as link 133 con-
necting segment 120 and segment 123.

Selling entity 101 enters text into text box 134 (“What
benefits as a sales director do I receive from engajer?”). This
text will be associated with a clickable button (see button
161 in FIG. 6) when segment 120 is rendered in the Internet
browser. Selling entity 101 forms the link by selecting the
segment 124 (“S. Sales Director”) from the drop-down list
UI element 135. This link is shown on the webpage as 11111\
136 connecting segment 120 and segment 124.

Selling entity 101 is able to use Ul components 112 to
delete segments of the IMP 113 and links between the
segments. For example, if selling entity 101 decides to
delete segment 124, then selling entity 101 selects segment
124 by clicking on segment 124 and clicks the Ul element
button 137 labeled “Delete Node™. Additionally, the selling
entity 101 is able to delete links and their associated text by
using the UI button elements 138-141 that are labeled
“Delete™. For example, selling entity 101 may delete the link
136 by selecting segment 120 and clicking delete button
141. As a result of deleting segment 120, the IMP configu-
ration information is updated to reflect such deletion of link
136.

After the selling entity 101 has configured the IMP 113,
then selling entity 101 submits the configured IMP 113 to the
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software application 102 by clicking the Ul button compo-
nent 142 labeled “Finish”. In response to clicking button
142, the webpage 110 communicates the configuration infor-
mation of the IMP 113 to the software application 102
running on the application server 100. The configuration
information comprises all the information necessary to ren-
der the IMP 113 on an Internet browser. Configuration
information includes all the content for each of the segments
(text, URLs for videos, URLs for images, URLs for audio
recordings) and also includes link information indicative of
how the segments are associated with each other. If selling,
entity 101 desires to preview the IMP prior to transmitting
to the server 100, then selling entity 101 may click the
preview button 118 to view how the IMP will be presented
to a purchasing entity or other potential business contact.
Selling entity 101 may save the IMP by clicking the Ul
button component 143 labeled “Save™ so that the selling
entity 101 may login later to modify and complete the IMP.
Additionally, selling entity 101 may delete the IMP by
clicking the UT button component 144 labeled “Clear” so
that the selling entity 101 may configure a new presentation.

FIG. 4 is a diagram showing how selling entity 101 uses
the UI components 112 to configure the IMP 113 such that
video is associated with each of the segments of the IMP
113. Selling entity 101 incorporates video 10 the presentation
by clicking the UT tab component 145 labeled “Add Video™.
The Ul components 113 provide a drag-and-drop feature
such that the selling entity 101 selects a video and drag-
and-drops the video onto the segment the selling entity 101
wants to associate with the video. For example, selling entity
selects video 149 and drag-and-drops the video 149 onto
segment 121. Reference numeral 150 identifies a dashed line
and arrow that represents the selling entity 101 performing
this drag-and-drop operation using the Ul components pro-
vided on webpage 110. Reference numeral 151 identifies a
Ul block component that is provided to the selling entity as
a visual tool to indicate that video 148 is associated with
segment 121. When a purchasing entity or other business
contact is presented with segment 121, the purchasing entity
will be presented with video 148.

Selling entity 101 is presented with various videos 146-
149 that the selling entity 101 may incorporate in the
presentation. The videos 146-149 shown in FIG. 4 are made
available to selling entity 101 in a variety of ways. For
example, the videos may be uploaded from a storage device
of the user system 105 to the application server 100 by the
selling entity 101. In another example, selling entity 101
provides a URL associated with a video to.the software
application 102, for example a link to a *“YouTube” video. In
yet another example, selling entity 101 records the video on
Internet browser 104 via a digital video recorder attached to
the user system 105, and webpage 110 transmits the
recorded video to the software application 102 running on
server 100.

FIG. § is a diagram showing the webpage 110 transmiftting
configuration information 152 to the software applicaticn
102 running on application server 100. The configuration
information 152 comprises data for rendering the IMP on an
Internet browser. In this embodiment, the confignration
information is realized as JavaScript Object Notation
(JSON) data. The configuration information 152 includes all
the content for each of the segments (text, URLs for videos,
URLs for images, URLs for audio recordings) and also
includes link information indicative of how the segments of
the IMP are associated with each other. After software
application 102 receives the configuration information 152,
software application 102 stores the configuration informa-
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tion 152 in a database 133. Database 153 may be part of
application server 100, or may be located remotely on a
different server.

The webpage 110 transmits the configuration information
152 to the application server 100 in a variety of different
ways. In this embodiment, the webpage 110 comprises
JavaScript instructions. The JavaScript instructions may be
hardcoded in the webpage 110 or may be linked in the
webpage 110 to a javascript file stored on application server
100 or an external server. JavaScript instructions include a
function that is binded to the “Finish” button 142 such that
when selling entity clicks the “Finish™ button 142, the
function is called and a resulting HyperText Transfer Pro-
tocol (HTTP) POST request is generated and supplied over
network 108 to the software application 102 running on
application server 100. Software application 102 is config-
ured to detect such an HTTP POST request and determines
that the HTTP POST request includes configuration infor-
mation of the IMP that is then stored.

In another embodiment, the webpage 110 comprises
JavaScript instructions for performing an Asynchronous
JavaScript and XML (AJAX) request. The JavaScript
instructions may be hardcoded in the webpage 110 or may
be linked in the webpage 110 to a javascript file stored on
application server 100 or an external server. The JavaScript
instructions perform the AJAX request by generating an
XMLHttpRequest object that is supplied over network 108
to the software application 102 running on application server
100. Software application 102 is configured to detect such an
XMLHttpRequest object and determines that the XMLHft-
pRequest object includes configuration information of the
IMP that is then stored. The AJAX request is performed
periodically such that the webpage 110 does not appear to
refresh or redirect to anotber page. In this fashion, the
webpage 110 essentially performs auto-save without the nser
being aware that the presentation is being saved. Upon
clicking “Finish” button 142, another request is generated
indicating to software application 102 that the presentation
is complete.

In yet another embodiment, the webpage 110 comprises
JavaScript instructions for maintaining a web socket con-
nection with the software application 102 ranning on appli-
cation server 100. The Javascript instructions use the Web-
Socket protocol to communicate the configuration
information 152 to the application server 100.

FIG. 6 is a diagram showing how the software application
102 retrieves the configuration information 152 and trans-
mits the configuration information 152 to an Internet
browser 155 of a purchasing entity 156. The internet
browser 155 is running on a user system 170 of the pur-
chasing entity 156. The purchasing entity 156 is typically a
potential purchaser or customer of the selling entity 1061. The
purchasing entity 156 views the IMP 171 on browser 155.
Although IMP 171 is shown in FIG. 6 as a tree with 5 nodes,
in reality IMP 171 is an interactive presentation that markets
a product or a service being sold by the selling entity 101.
The purchasing entity 156 is first presented with segment
120 labeled “Engajer”. This involves the video 157 and
buttons 158-161 being rendered on Internet browser 155.
After the purchasing entity 156 views the IMP 171, the
purchasing entity 156 clicks on any of buttons 158-161 to
learn additional information regarding the product or the
service. If the purchasing entity 156 clicks on button 158,
then the contents of segment 121 will be rendered on
browser 155. In this fashion, purchasing entity interacts and
views the IMP 171.
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FIG. 7 is a flowchart of a method 200 in accordance with
one novel aspect. In a first step (step 201), a webpage is
provided to an intemet browser of a selling entity. The
webpage is provided by a software application (webapp)
running on a web server over a network. The webpage has
an amount of instructions that render User Interface (UI)
components on the browser. The selling entity uses the Ul
components to configure an Interactive Marketing Presen-
tation (IMP). For example, in FIG. 2, webpage 110 is
provided to the browser 104. Webpage 110 includes an
amount of instructions 111 that render Ul components 112
on the browser 104. Selling entity 101 uses the Ul compo-
nents 112 to configure the IMP.

In a second step (step 202), configuration information of
the IMP is received onto the software application (webapp)
running on the web server. For example, in FIG. 5, webpage
110 supplies configuration information 152 to software
application 102 running on server 100. Software application
102 stores the configuration information 152 in the database
153. Upon receiving a particular HTTP request, the sofiware
application 102 retrieves the configuration information 152
and uses the configuration information 152 to generate an
HTTP response that includes instructions for rendering the
IMP on an Internet browser.

Although certain specific exemplary embodiments are
described above in order to illustrate the invention, the
invention is not limited to the specific embodiments. For
example, in another embodiment the application server is
accessible to both the selling entity and purchasing entities
via a mobile device such as a laptap, a tablet computer, or
a cellular phone. In yet another embodiment, the IMP 113
supports additional interactive functions such as receiving
phone calls or text messages. For example, a purchasing
entity that is interested clicks on an HTML button element
on a segment of the IMP 113 that in turn initiates a
telephonic communication between the purchasing entity
and the selling entity 101. The conversation between the
sales associate and the selling entity 101 is recorded and
transcribed and accessible by the sales team. Accordingly,
various modifications, adaptations, and combinations of
various features of the described embodiments can be prac-
ticed without departing from the scope of the invention as set
forth in the claims.

What is claimed is:

1. A method comprising:

(a) providing a webpage to an Internet browser of a selling
entity, wherein a software application running on a web
server provides the webpage to the Internet browser of
the selling entity via a network, wherein the webpage
includes an amount of instructions that render a plu-
rality of User Interface (Ul) components on the Internet
browser of the selling entity, and wherein the plurality
of Ul components is used to configure an Interactive
Marketing Presentation (IMP), wherein the Ul compo-
nents are used to generate a visual representation of the
IMP that is displayed to the selling entity that shows
how segments of the IMP are linked to each other, and
wherein when the IMP is presented on a display to a
user segments of the IMP are presented to the user in
response 1o user input in accordance with how the
segments are'shown linked to each other in the visual
representation of the IMP, wherein the visual represen-
tation of the IMP is not displayed to the user; and

(b) receiving configuration information of the IMP onto
the software application, wherein the webpage supplies
the configuration information to the software applica-
tion via the network.
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2. The method of claim 1, further comprising:

(c) storing the configuration information received in (b) in
a database, wherein the configuration information is
retrievable by the sofiware application to supply the
IMP to an Internet browser of a purchasing entity, and
wherein the configuration information is associated in
the database with the selling entity.

3. The method of claim 1, wherein the plurality of Ul
components is used to configure the IMP by 1) generating a
first segment of the IMP having a first content block, a first
button, and a second button, 2) generating a second segment
of the IMP having a second content block, 3) generating a
third segment of the IMP having a third content block, 4)
forming a first link between the first button and the second
segment, and 5) forming a second link between the second
button and the third segment.

4. The method of claim 3, wherein the first segment, the
second segment, the third segment, the first link, and the

second link are parts of the configuration information 2

received by the software application in (b).

5. The method of claim 3, wherein the first content block,
the second content block and the third content block include
at least one element taken from the group consisting of: a
video, an animation, a graph, a table, an image, and an audio
clip. :

6. The method of claim 1, wherein the plurality of Ul
components includes at least one element taken from the
group consisting of: a span element, an image element, a
table element, an animation element, an external video
object element, a poll element, a selection box element, a
radio box element, a form element, a text box element, a
real-time messaging box element, and a button element.

7. The method of claim 1, wherein the configuration
information received in (b) comprises a Uniform Resource
Locator (URL) that corresponds to a video, wherein the
URL is provided by the selling entity, and wherein the video
is presented to a purchasing entity as part of a segment of the
IMP.

8. The method of claim 1, wherein the IMP is a set of
instructions that renders at least three rich-media content
segments on a display of a device, wherein a first of the three
rich-media content segments includes a first button and a
second button, and wherein the plurality of segments is
presented on the display such that if a purchasing entity
presses the first button then a second of the three rich-media
content segments is presented on the display whereas if the
purchasing entity presses the second button then a third of
the three rich-media content segments is presented on the
display.

9. The method of claim 1, wherein the software applica-
tion stores a first value indicative of a length of time the
purchasing entity viewed the first of the three rich-media
content segments, wherein the software application stores a
second value indicative of whether the purchasing entity
clicked the first button, and wherein the first value and
second value are provided to the selling entity.

10. The method of claim 1, wherein the Internet browser
of the selling entity is executing on a device of the selling
entity, wherein the Ul components are used by the selling
entity using the device to configure the IMP, and wherein the
device is selected from the group consisting of: a mobile
handset, a portable computer and a desktop computer.

11. The method of claim 1, wherein the receiving of the
configuration information in step (b) occurs in response to
an asynchronous HyperText Transfer Protocol (HTTP)
request.
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12. The method of claim 1, wherein the receiving of the
configuration information in (b) occurs in response to an
HyperText Transter Protocol (HTTP) request generated
when the selling entity presses a button, wherein the button
is one of the plurality of UI components.

13. The method of claim 1, wherein the receiving of the
configuration information in (b) is a result of a web socket
connection between the webpage provided to the Internet
browser of the selling entity and the software application
running on the web server.

14. A system comprising:

a database; and

a software application running on a web server, wherein

a browser executing on a computer of a user renders a
document served up by the software application, the
document includes an amount of instructions that ren-
der a plurality of User Interface (UI) components on the
browser, wherein the plurality of Ul components is
used to configure an Interactive Marketing Presentation
(IMP), wherein a visual representation of the IMP is
displayed to a selling entity, wherein the visual repre-
sentation of the IMP shows how segments of the IMP
are linked to each other, wherein the visual represen-
tation of the IMP is not displayed to the user, wherein
segments of the IMP are presented to the user in
response to user input according to how the segments
are linked to each other, and wherein the software
application stores configuration information of the IMP
in the database.

15. The system of claim 14, wherein the plurality of Ul
components includes at least one element taken from the
group consisting of: a span element, an image element, a
table element, an animation element, an external video
object element, a poll element, a selection box element, a
radio box element, a form element, a text box element, a
real-time messaging box element, and a button element.

16. The system of claim 14, wherein the plurality of Ul
components rendered on the browser are used to configure
the IMP by: 1) generating a first segment of the IMP having
a first content block, a first button, and a second button, 2)
generating a second segment of the IMP having a second
content block, 3) generating a third segment of the IMP
having a third content block, 4) forining a first link between
the first button and the second segment, and 5) forming a
second link between the second button and the third seg-
ment. .

17. The system of claim 16, wherein the first segment, the
second segment, the third segment, the first link, and the
second link are parts of the configuration information stored
in the database.

18. The system of claim 16, wherein the first content
block, the second content block and the third content block
include at least one element taken from the group consisting
of: a video, an animation, a graph, a table, an image, and an
audio clip.

19. A non-transitory computer-readable medium storing
instructions that, when executed by a processor, cause the
processor to perform a method, the method comprising;

(a) providing a webpage to an Internet browser of a selling

entity via a network, wherein the webpage includes an
amount of instructions that render a plurality of User
Interface (UI) components on the Iiternet browser of
the selling entity, wherein the plurality of Ul compo-
nents is used by the selling entity to configure an
Interactive Marketing Presentation (IMP), wherein a
visual representation of the IMP is displayed to the
selling entity by the Internet browser of the selling
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entity, wherein the visnal representation of the IMP
shows how segments of the IMP are linked, and
wherein, in response to user input of a user, segments
of the IMP are presented to the user in accordance with
how the segments are linked; and

(b) receiving configuration information of the IMP,

wherein the configuration information is received via
the network.

20. The non-transitory computer-readable medium of
claim 19, wherein the selling entity uses the plurality of UI
components rendered on the Intemet browser of the selling
entity to configure the IMP by: 1) generating a first segment
of the IMP having a first content block, a first button, and a
second button, 2) generating a second segment of the IMP
having a second content block, 3) generating a third segment
of the IMP having a third content block, 4) forming a first
link between the first button and the second segment, and 5)
forming a second link between the second button and the
third segment, and wherein the first content block, the
second content block and the third content block include at
least one element taken from the group consisting of: a
video, an animation, a graph, a table, an image, and an audio
clip.

21. The non-transitory computer-readable medium of
claim 19, wherein the processor is a part of a web server, and

20
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wherein in the web server performs the providing of (a) and
also performs the receiving of (b).

22. A method comprising:

(a) providing a webpage to an Internet browser of a selling
entity, wherein a software application mnning on a web
server provides the webpage to the Internet browser of
the selling entity via a network, wherein the webpage
includes an amount of instructions that render a plu-
rality of User Interface (Ul) components on the Internet
browser of the selling entity, and wherein the plurality
of Ul components is used by the selling entity to
configure an Interactive Marketing Presentation (IMP);

(b) causing a visual representation of the IMP to be
displayed fo the selling entity, wherein the visual rep-
resentation of the IMP shows how segments of the IMP
are linked to each other, wherein when the TMP is
presented on a display to a user segments of the IMP are
presented to the user in response to user input in
accordance with how the segments are shown linked to
each other in the visual representation, and wherein the
visual representation of the IMP is not displayed to the
user; and

{c) receiving configuration information of the IMP onto
the software application, wherein the configuration
information is received via the network.

* x % % %
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